

PART 1 GENERAL ORGANISATION OF CYCLING AS A SPORT

Rules amendments applying on **01.02.2025**

Chapter II RACES

§ 2 Commissaires' panel

- 1.2.116** The commissaires' panel shall comprise commissaires appointed as per article 1.1.070. The number and status of the commissaires to be appointed for each race shall be as indicated in the tables below. Where applicable, and subject to availability, the panel should represent both genders and the following order of priority should be respected by the national federation when appointing commissaires: international commissaire, elite national commissaire (for Road, Track, MTB and BMX), national commissaire:

01/02/2025

Road	Olympic Games	UCI World Championships	Continental Championships	Regional Games	UCI WorldTour	UCI Women's WorldTour	UCI ProSeries	Class 1	Class 2	National Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
Members of the Commissaires' Panel	7	6	3 ⁽²⁾	3 ⁽²⁾	2/3*	2 ⁽²⁾	2 ⁽²⁾	2 ⁽³⁾	2 ⁽⁴⁾	2 ⁽⁴⁾
UCI TV Support Commissaires	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	-
UCI Technical Commissaire	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	-
Timekeeper (stage races only) 2 are recommended for Time Trials	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾
Finish line Commissaire	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾
Minimum Additional Commissaires	6 ⁽⁴⁾	8 ⁽⁴⁾	5 ⁽⁴⁾	5 ⁽⁴⁾	3/4* ⁽³⁾	3/4* ⁽³⁾	3 ⁽⁴⁾	3 ⁽⁴⁾	3 ⁽⁴⁾	3 ⁽⁴⁾

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation
Appointed by the Continental Confederation

*+1 for the Grands Tours

(1) On events determined by the UCI

(2) UCI international commissaire only

(3) UCI international commissaire. In absence of UCI international commissaire in the country, one commissaire can be elite national commissaire of the country.

(4) UCI international commissaire, Elite national commissaire or national commissaire (following such order)

Track	Olympic Games	UCI World Championships Elite + Junior	Continental Championships	Regional Games	UCI Nations Cup	Class 1	Class 2	UCI Masters World Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1
Secretary	1	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1
Starter	1	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽²⁾
Judge Referee	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2	1 ⁽²⁾	1/2	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽²⁾
Members of the Commissaires' Panel	3	3	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1	0	0	1 ⁽²⁾
UCI Technical Commissaire	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾	1/2 ⁽¹⁾
Minimum Additional Commissaires	11 ⁽⁴⁾	11 ⁽⁴⁾	10 ⁽⁴⁾	10 ⁽⁴⁾	11 ⁽⁴⁾	5 ⁽⁴⁾	5 ⁽⁴⁾	10 ⁽⁴⁾

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation
Appointed by the Continental Confederation

(1) On events determined by the UCI

(2) UCI international commissaire only

(3) UCI international commissaire. In absence of UCI international commissaire in the country, one commissaire can be elite national commissaire of the country.

(4) UCI international commissaire, Elite national commissaire or national commissaire (following such order)

MTB	Olympic Games	UCI WCh.	UCI MTB Marathon WCh.	UCI Pump Track WCh.	UCI MTB Eliminator WCh.	UCI Enduro WCh.	UCI Snow Bike WCh.	CC	Regional Games	UCI World Cup (XCO/XCC /DHI/XCM/EDR)	UCI MTB Eliminator World Cup	Hors Class (HC/SHC)	Class 1 (C1/S1) Class 2 (C2/S2)	Class 3	UCI Masters WCh.	NC
President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 ⁽⁴⁾
Secretary	1	1	1	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾
Assistant President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾
Start line commissaire	1	2	1	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	2 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1-2 ^{*(2)}	1 ⁽³⁾	2 ^{*(4)}	2 ^{*(4)}	2 ^{*(4)}	2 ^{*(4)}	2 ^{*(4)}
Finish line commissaire	1	2	1	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1-2 ^{*(2)}	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾
UCI Technical Commissaire	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	-
Minimum Additional Commissaires	2 ⁽³⁾	6 ⁽⁴⁾	6 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	0	2-4 ⁽⁴⁾	0	4-6 ⁽⁴⁾	0	2-4 ⁽⁴⁾	0	2 ⁽⁴⁾	1 ⁽⁴⁾	0	6 ⁽⁴⁾	2 ⁽⁴⁾

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation
Appointed by the Continental Confederation

WCh. = World Championships / CC = Continental Championships / NC = National Championships

*2 if more than 1 event

(1) On events determined by the UCI

(2) UCI international commissaire only

(3) UCI international commissaire. In absence of UCI international commissaire in the country, one commissaire can be elite national commissaire of the country.

(4) UCI international commissaire, Elite national commissaire or national commissaire (following such order)

BMX Freestyle	Specialty	Olympic Games	UCI World Championships	Continental Championships ⁽¹⁾	Regional Games	UCI World Cup	HC ⁽¹⁾	Class 1	National Championships
Head Judge	Park	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
	Flatland	0	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
Secretary	Both	1	1	0	0	1	0	0	0
Judges	Park	5	5	3	3	5	3-5	3	3
	Flatland	0	3	3	3	3	3	3	3

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation
Appointed by the Continental Confederation

⁽¹⁾ For HC Events and Continental Championships, at least one judge must be qualified as a UCI Judge

Indoor Cycling	Specialty	UCI World Championships	UCI World Cup	Class A	Class B	National Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	CB	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1	1
	ART	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1	1
Members of the Commissaires' Panel	CB	5 ⁽¹⁾	3/4* ⁽¹⁾	2	2	Depending of the participation
	ART	6 ⁽¹⁾	4/6* ⁽¹⁾	4	4	Depending of the participation

Legend:

Minimum appointed by the UCI

Minimum appointed by the National Federation
--

*4/6 for the final and the preparation for the UCI World Championship

⁽¹⁾ UCI international commissaire only

BMX Racing	Olympic Games	UCI World Championships	Continental Championships	Regional Games	UCI World Cup	Hors Class	Class 1	National Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 ⁽³⁾
Secretary	1	1	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽³⁾
Assistant President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽³⁾
Members of the Commissaires' Panel	2	4	0	0	1	0	0	1 ⁽³⁾
Starter	1 ⁽³⁾	2 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	2 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾
Minimum Additional Commissaires	3 ⁽³⁾	8 ⁽³⁾	4 ⁽³⁾	4 ⁽³⁾	3 ⁽³⁾	4 ⁽³⁾	4 ⁽³⁾	0

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation
Appointed by the Continental Confederation

(1) UCI international commissaire only

(2) UCI international commissaire. In absence of UCI international commissaire in the country, one commissaire can be elite national commissaire of the country.

(3) UCI international commissaire, Elite national commissaire or national commissaire (following such order)

Cyclo-cross	UCI World Championships	Continental Championships	UCI World Cup	Class 1	Class 2	UCI Masters World Championships	National Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1	1	1	1	1 ⁽³⁾
Finish Judge	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽³⁾
Members of the Commissaires' Panel	2	1 ⁽²⁾	2 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽³⁾	1 ⁽²⁾	1 ⁽³⁾
UCI Technical Commissaire	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	-
Minimum Additional Commissaires	4 ⁽³⁾	4 ⁽³⁾	3 ⁽³⁾	3 ⁽³⁾	2 ⁽³⁾	3 ⁽³⁾	3 ⁽³⁾

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation
Appointed by the Continental Confederation

⁽¹⁾ On events determined by the UCI

⁽²⁾ UCI international commissaire only

⁽³⁾ UCI international commissaire or national commissaire (following such order)

Trials	UCI World Championships	Continental Championships	UCI World Cup	Hors Class	Class 1	UCI World Youth Games	National Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1	1	1	1	1
Secretary	1	1	1	1	1	1	0
Members of the Commissaires' Panel	4	0	4	0	0	0	0
Minimum Additional Commissaires	5	5	5	5	5	10 ⁽¹⁾	5

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation
Appointed by the Continental Confederation

⁽¹⁾ UCI Trials International Commissaire or Trials National Commissaire (following such order).

Gravel & Gran Fondo	Specialty	UCI World Championships	UCI Gran Fondo World Series	UCI Gravel World Series	National Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	Gravel	1	0	1	1
	Gran Fondo	1	1	0	1
Members of the Commissaires' Panel	Gravel	2 ⁽²⁾	0	2 ⁽²⁾	2
	Gran Fondo	2 ⁽²⁾	2 ⁽²⁾	0	2
UCI Technical Commissaire	Gravel	2 ⁽¹⁾	TBC	TBC	0
	Gran Fondo	2 ⁽¹⁾	TBC	TBC	0
Minimum Additional Commissaires	Gravel	6 ⁽³⁾	0	3 ⁽³⁾	3
	Gran Fondo	6 ⁽³⁾	3 ⁽³⁾	0	3

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI

Appointed by the National Federation

⁽¹⁾ On events determined by the UCI

⁽²⁾ UCI international commissaire only

⁽³⁾ UCI international commissaire or national commissaire (following such order)

E-sport	UCI World Championships	Other events	National Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation

Para-cycling (Road + Track)	Paralympic Games	UCI World Championships	Continental Championships	UCI World Cup	Class 1	Class 2	National Championships
President of the Commissaires' Panel	1	1	1	1	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1
Secretary	1	1	1 ⁽²⁾	1	1	1	1
Members of the Commissaires' Panel	6	4	1	1	0	0	0
UCI Technical Commissaire	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	1 ⁽¹⁾	0
Minimum Additional Commissaires	10	7	5	7	3	3	3

Legend:

Appointed by the UCI
Appointed by the National Federation
Appointed by the Continental Confederation

⁽¹⁾ On events determined by the UCI

⁽²⁾ UCI international commissaire only

(text modified on 15.07.08; 01.02.10; 01.07.12; 15.03.16; 01.03.18; 05.02.19; 23.10.19; 11.02.20 ; 10.06.21; 01.10.21; 20.02.23; 01.02.25)

Chapter III EQUIPMENT

§ 1 Principles

1.3.001 Each licence holder shall ensure that ~~their his~~ equipment (bicycle with accessories and other devices fitted, headgear, clothing, etc.) does not, by virtue of its quality, materials or design, constitute any danger to ~~themselves himself~~ or to others.

Each licence holder and each team shall also be responsible to ensure compliance with the UCI Regulations of any equipment they intend to use in events.

Commissaires shall have discretion to apply the provisions related to equipment and forbid the use of any equipment deemed non-compliant in the events they officiate. The UCI may also determine that equipment may not be used and shall communicate such decision to the manufacturer and, as the case may be, to relevant teams. The UCI shall not be held liable for any such decision by Commissaires or the UCI, whether the equipment has been used previously in events or not.

(text modified on 01.02.25)

§ 3 Commercialisation

1.3.006 Equipment shall be of a type that is sold for use by anyone practicing cycling as a sport.

Any equipment in development phase and not yet available for purchase (prototype) must be subject of an authorisation request to the UCI Equipment Unit before its use. Authorisation will be granted only for equipment which is in the final stage of development and for which commercialisation will take place no later than 12 months after the first use in competition. The manufacturer may request a single prolongation of the prototype status if ~~based on by the relevant reasons~~ justified grounds. Upon expiry of the prototype authorisation, the equipment must be commercially available.

When assessing a request for use of equipment which is not yet available for sale, the UCI Equipment Unit will pay particular attention to the safety of the equipment which will be submitted to it for authorisation.

Use of equipment under prototype authorisation in track events and/or in the context of a particular performance (best performance, world record, hour record or other) shall not be authorised.

Without prejudice to prototypes (equipment not yet available for purchase), any item of equipment must be commercially available in order to be used in cycling events. The requirement of commercial availability shall be understood as equipment having to be available for purchase through a direct and publicly available order system (whether with manufacturer, distributor or retailer). Upon an order being placed, the order shall be confirmed within 30 days and the relevant equipment shall be made available for delivery within a further 90-day deadline. In addition, the retail price of the equipment shall be publicly advertised, shall not

01/02/2025

render the equipment de facto unavailable to the general public and shall not unreasonably exceed the market value for equipment of a similar standard.

Any equipment which is neither commercially available, nor under a valid prototype authorisation at the time of the event, may not be used. **Commissaires may refuse the start or disqualify any rider using such equipment.**

Any breach of the provisions of this article, not limited to the use of equipment which is not commercially available or under prototype authorisation, ~~Any such unauthorised use of equipment may be sanctioned by disqualification of results obtained when using the equipment and/or a~~ shall be sanctioned with a fine ranging from CHF 5'000 to 100'000. Such fine shall be in addition of any sanction imposed by Commissaires, if any.

(text modified on 01.11.10; 01.10.11; 01.01.17; 15.10.18; 01.01.23; 01.02.25)

Section 3: clothing and other items worn by riders

§ 1 General provisions

- 1.3.032** ~~Items of e~~clothing and other items or accessories worn by a rider (including but not limited to helmets, glasses, shoes or in-race communication devices) may not modify the morphology of the rider.

~~Moreover, and any non-essential element or device which is added on (or under) or integrated in any clothing, or other item or accessory worn by a rider shall be forbidden. A non-essential element shall be any element which does not have a, of which the purpose which is not exclusively that of clothing or protection, or which is not strictly necessary for the functionality of the clothing, or other item or accessory, is forbidden.~~ This shall also apply regarding any material or substance applied onto the skin or clothing and which is not itself an item of clothing ~~or another item or accessory worn by a rider.~~

(text modified on 01.02.25)

- 1.3.033** Modifications to the surface roughness of clothing are authorised but may only be the result of threading, weaving or assembling of the fabric. Surface roughness modifications shall be limited to a profile difference of 1mm at most.



The measure of surface roughness modification shall be made without pressure or traction on the clothing.

All clothing must maintain the original texture of the textile and may not be adapted in a manner to integrate form constraints. Therefore, when not worn, clothing may in no case contain any self-supporting element or rigid parts.

(text modified on 01.01.02; 01.01.04; 01.04.07; 01.10.10; 01.02.12; 04.03.19; 01.02.25)

Section 3: rider's clothing

§ 6 World champion's jersey

1.3.063 World champions must wear their jersey in all events in the discipline, speciality and category in which they won their title, and no other event, until the evening of the day before the commencement of the next edition of the world championships of said discipline, speciality and category.

The world champion in the individual time trial is ~~not~~ authorised to wear the world champion's jersey during team time trial events.

In track races, in Madison, if one of the teammates is not World Champion, then both riders shall wear the same team jersey or one World Champion jersey with one plain white jersey.

In six-day races, only madison world champions may wear the jersey, even if they are not paired together.

In para-cycling, for Tandem (B), Team Relay (TR) and Team Sprint (TS), only world champion athletes must wear the rainbow jerseys even if the pair or the team subsequently dissolve.

In non-individual events in Indoor Cycling, if one of the teammates is not World Champion, then no rider shall wear the World Champion jersey.

In Cycling Esports the UCI defines the World Champion jersey as having two states; 1) physical and 2) virtual. As such, the rainbow jersey must be worn in Cycling Esports events (physical state), both In-real life and remote races, and In-game by means of a digital avatar (virtual state). The obligation to wear the World Champion jersey in virtual state remains subject to the creation of such a digital avatar by the respective Cycling Esports platforms

The world champion jersey must be worn at every opportunity with public exposure, in particular during competitions, awards ceremonies, press conferences, television interviews, autograph sessions, photo sessions and other occasions.

(text modified on 01.01.05; 01.01.06; 01.10.10; 01.07.12; 01.10.13; 04.03.19; 11.02.20; 08.02.21, 01.02.25)

1.3.064 Without prejudice to paragraph 2 below, only the current world champion rider may wear rainbow piping on ~~his-their~~ equipment (such as bike, helmet, shoes) as per the technical specifications in the "UCI jerseys visual guidelines" brochure published on the UCI Website. However, ~~he-they~~ may use the equipment bearing the rainbow piping only in events of the discipline, speciality and category in which ~~they~~ won the title and in no other event.

The current individual time trial world champion is authorised to use rainbow stripes on their time trial bicycle for individual time trial and team time trial events.

When ~~he a rider~~ no longer holds the title of world champion, ~~a rider they~~ may wear rainbow piping on the collar and cuffs of ~~his their~~ jersey, to the exclusion of any other equipment, as per the technical specifications in the "UCI jerseys visual guidelines" brochure published on the UCI Website. However, ~~they~~ may wear such a jersey only in events of the discipline, speciality and category in which ~~they~~ won the title and in no other event. ~~;-nevertheless, Former individual time trial world champions are authorised to use rainbow piping on their time trial skinsuit in individual time trial and team time trial events.~~

In ~~compliance~~ accordance with the ~~provisions~~ articles 1.3.056 and 1.3.059, ~~they is~~ ~~are~~ not authorised to add the rainbow piping on ~~his~~-national team clothing. Any equipment bearing the rainbow piping shall be submitted to UCI for approval before production.

(text modified on 01.01.05; 01.09.05; 24.09.07; 01.10.10; 01.01.15; 08.02.21, 01.02.25)

§ 7 National champion's jersey

1.3.068 National champions must wear their jersey in all events in the discipline, speciality and category in which they won their title and no other event until the evening of the day before the commencement of the next edition of the national championships of said discipline, speciality and category.

The national champion in the individual time trial is ~~not~~-authorised to wear the distinctive national champion's jersey during team time trial events.

In Madison track races if one of the teammates is not national champion, then both riders shall wear the same team jersey. In a six-day event, only madison national champions must wear the jersey even if they are not paired together.

(N) When ~~a rider-he~~ no longer holds the title of national champion, ~~a rider~~ ~~they~~ can wear piping in national colours on the collar and cuffs of his jersey and shorts as per the technical specifications determined by the national federation. However, ~~they~~ can wear such a jersey only in events of the discipline, speciality and category in which ~~they~~ won the title and in no other event; nevertheless, former individual time trial national champions ~~is-are~~ authorised to use piping in national colour on ~~his-their~~ time trial skinsuit for individual time trial and team time trial events.

The national champion jersey must be worn whenever a rider is engaged in activities on the track, awards ceremonies, press conferences, television interviews, autograph sessions and other occasions which require a good presentation.

(text modified on 01.01.99; 01.01.04; 01.01.05; 01.01.06; 01.10.10; 01.01.13; 01.01.15; 01.07.17; 22.10.18; 01.01.19; 23.10.19; 12.06.20, 01.02.25)

§ 8 Continental champion's jersey

1.3.070 If a jersey is awarded at a continental championship, riders may wear it in all races in the discipline, speciality and category in which they won the title and no other event, until the evening of the day before the commencement of the next edition of the continental championships of said discipline, speciality and category.

The continental champion in the individual time trial is authorised to wear the distinctive continental champion's jersey during team time trial events.

(N) When a rider no longer holds the title of continental champion, they can wear piping in continental colours on the collar and cuffs of his jersey and shorts as per the technical specifications determined by the continental confederation. However, they can wear such a jersey only in events of the discipline, speciality and category in which they won the title and in no other event; nevertheless, former individual time trial continental champions are authorised to use piping in continental colours on their time trial skinsuit for individual time trial and team time trial events.

Continental confederations may impose the mandatory wearing of their continental champion's jersey in the discipline, specialty and category of their choosing. In Madison track races, if one of the teammates is not Continental Champion, then both riders shall wear the same team jersey.

The authorised advertising spaces are described in the "UCI jerseys visual guidelines" brochure published on the UCI Website.

Before production, the continental champion jersey design (colours, flag, drawing) reproduced by the titled rider must be approved by the concerned continental confederation and must respect the latter's dispositions.

(text modified on 01.01.04; 01.01.05; 01.09.05; 01.01.16; 01.07.17; 23.10.19; 12.06.20; 08.02.21; 01.02.25)

§ 10 Sanctions

1.3.072 The following infringements shall be penalised as indicated below:
(the sums are the fine in CHF)

1. Non-regulation clothing (colour and layout)
 - rider: 50 to 200 and start not permitted
 - team: 250 to 500 per rider
2. Non-regulation advertising
 - 2.1 Team, per rider bearing non-regulation advertising
 - jersey: 500 to 2,100 and start of the rider concerned not permitted
 - shorts: 300 to 1,050 and start of the rider concerned not permitted
 - skinsuit: 700 to 3,000 and start of the rider concerned not permitted
 - 2.2 Leader's jersey
 - organiser: 1,000 to 2,100 per rider concerned and rider not obliged to wear the jersey
 - team: 1,000 to 2,100 per rider concerned and start of the riders concerned not permitted
3. Leader's jersey
 - 3.1 Unavailability of jerseys or skinsuits as required by the race regulations
 - organiser: 1,000 to 2,100 per rider concerned
 - 3.2 Leader's jersey or skinsuit not fit to wear
 - organiser: 1,000 to 2,100 per rider concerned
 - 3.3 Allocation of unauthorised jerseys
 - organiser: 1,000 to 2,100 per jersey concerned
4. Rider not wearing (if required pursuant to articles 1.3.059, 1.3.063, 1.3.068 or 1.3.070)
 - world champion's jersey
 - team: 2,500 to 5,000 and start of the rider concerned not permitted
 - leader's jersey of a UCI cup, circuit, series or classification
 - team: 2,500 to 5,000 and start of the rider concerned not permitted

01/02/2025

- rider: start not permitted and loss of 50 points in the UCI classification concerned
 - continental champion's jersey
 - team: 2,500 to 5,000
 - national champion's jersey
 - team: 2,500 to 5,000
 - national clothing
 - team: 500 to 1,000 per rider and start of the riders concerned not permitted
5. National team clothing
- failure to submit to the UCI (article 1.3.056)
 - national federation: 500 to 10,000
6. World champion's equipment
- in breach of article 1.3.066 or 1.3.067
 - rider: 2,000 to 100,000
 - wearing of the jersey in a discipline, speciality or category other than that in which it was won
 - rider: 2,000 to 10,000
 - in breach of article 1.3.064
 - rider 2,000 to 10,000
 - logo of UCI Team Time Trial World Champions not worn
 - team: 10,000
7. National champion's jersey
- in breach of article 1.3.068, second paragraph:
 - rider: 200 to 10,000

The amounts of the fines set above are doubled in the event of an offence during a world championship.

(text modified on 01.03.01; 01.01.04; 01.01.05; 01.10.10; 01.07.11; 01.07.12; 01.02.25)